1963

William Garth Seegmiller and Marjorie Seegmiller dba Mademoiselle Beauty Salon v. Al Hunt dba Mademoiselle Coiffures : Brief of Appellants

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF NATURE OF CASE

This is a case involving both the Utah Statute applicable to trademarks (Title 70, Utah Code Annotated) and the common law of trademarks, tradenames, and unfair competition.

Plaintiffs are the owners of a registration in the State of Utah of the trademark "MADEMOISELLE" issued to plaintiff June 2, 1961, for use in connection with "beauty salon and supplies." The registration is based on first use of the mark at least as early as May 1, 1959 on beauty salon cosmetics, such as hair styling spray, and in connection with beauty culture services such as are performed in beauty salons.

Plaintiffs' common law rights are based on first adoption and use in and throughout the State of Utah of the word "MADEMOISELLE" as a trademark and as a trade or business name.

DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

The case was tried to the court, sitting without a jury. The court refused to grant the injunction as prayed for by plaintiffs and found the registration of the trademark "MADEMOISELLE" by plaintiffs to be invalid.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Plaintiffs seek reversal of the judgment of the lower court and judgment in their favor declaring their registration with the Secretary of State of the State of Utah valid and enjoining and restraining the defendant from using the name "MADEMOISELLE" in the State of Utah.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

William Garth Seegmiller and Marjorie Seegmiller, his wife, began operation of the Mademoiselle Salon of Beauty in Provo, Utah, on or about May 1, 1959 (Tr. 6, Plaintiffs' Exhibit "A," 1-3-63) and at that time commenced the sale of hair styling spray in pressurized cans bearing labels imprinted with the trademark "MADEMOISELLE" (Tr. 13, Exhibits "A" 4-5-63, "B," and "C"). On June 2, 1961, the mark was registered with the Secretary of State of the State of Utah, and a Certificate of Trademark Registration was issued to plaintiffs.

Plaintiffs were licensed for the years 1959, 1960, 1961, and subsequently with the Department of Business Regulations of the State of Utah (Tr. 12, Exhibit "F," Exhibit "J," 4-5-63, Tr. 195), such licenses being in the name of Mademoiselle Salon of Beauty (William Garth and Marjorie H. Seegmiller). Plaintiffs held a grand

opening of their beauty salon on or about May 23, 1959 (Exhibit "J," 4-5-63, Tr. 24). The salon has since been clearly and brilliantly marked and identified by a large neon sign (Exhibit "F", 1-3-63, Tr. 9, 12).

Prior to the time defendant began business in Ogden, Utah, plaintiffs advertised extensively over KFOR-TV, the range of broadcast of which included Weber, Morgan, Cache, Salt Lake, Rich, and other counties (Exhibit "F", 4-5-63, Tr. 88, 158, 159). Plaintiffs also advertised over radio stations KOVO and KEYY of Provo, Utah (Tr. 26, Exhibit "L"). KOVO could be heard all over the State of Utah at nights (Tr. 26). Plaintiffs advertised MADEMOISELLE SALON OF BEAUTY in the Daily Herald of Provo, Utah, a newspaper of general circulation in the State of Utah, and in the Brigham Young University Daily Universe (Tr. 14, 15, 16, 25, Exhibits "D", "E", and "M"). The B.Y.U. Universe was distributed to about 12 to 13 thousand students from practically every state in the Union (Tr. 16, 17). Plaintiffs advertised in the telephone directories covering Utah County and Nephi, in Juab County, in 1960, 1961, and 1962 (plaintiffs' Exhibits "S", "T", "U", Yellow Pages 24, 26, and 25, respectively, Tr. 69). Prior to June 2, 1961, plaintiffs spent about \$5,500.00 in advertising MADEMOISELLE (Tr. 71).

Plaintiffs were well known throughout the State under the name and style of MADEMOISELLE, and had an excellent reputation (Tr. 93, 105, 106, 107, 109, 128, 130, 131, 133, 135, 136, 146, 147). They have had customers from Brigham City, Ogden, Logan, Centerville, as well as from many other parts of the State of Utah,

and from without the State of Utah (Tr. 76-79, and 149-156). Sales of trademarked containers of hair spray took place in Salt Lake County to an Ogden resident long prior to defendant's use of the name (Tr. 34).

In 1958, and prior to May 1, 1959, at the time the name MADEMOISELLE was selected, there was no other beauty salon in the State of Utah using the name MADEMOISELLE. Plaintiffs had checked with the Utah Department of Business Regulations (Tr. 10, 11), checked telephone directories throughout the State (Tr. 9), and could find no other beauty salon doing business under the name or style of MADEMOISELLE (Tr. 22).

On or about May 19, 1961, defendant, Al Hunt, began business in Ogden, Utah, under the name of MADEMOISELLE COIFFURES (Tr. 7, 41). Defendant ordered a sign for his business on or about April 1, 1961 (Tr. 41).

The name MADEMOISELLE was and is distinctive (Tr. 109, 120), and confusion has resulted between plaintiffs' and defendant's businesses (Tr. 120). The court correctly found that the plaintiffs' and defendant's tradenames were similar and would be confusing, but incorrectly found that the two companies are operating in different trade areas and that they are not in competition with each other (R. 12).

Defendant claimed that he had not heard of the use by plaintiffs of the name MADEMOISELLE before June 2, 1961 (Tr. 41); then admitted that he had known of it shortly after the defendant opened his business (Tr.

42), and then finally admitted that it had been mentioned to him that there was a MADEMOISELLE SALON in Provo, Utah, about the time the defendant opened his business in Ogden, Utah, (Tr. 186). The Defendant had discussed the name of MADEMOISELLE with a Mel Greenhalgh, a salesman for the Peerless Beauty and Barber Supply, Salt Lake City, before the shop opened and at the time Defendant first contacted Mr. Greenhalgh to order his equipment (Tr. 51, 184, 185). Mr. Greenhalgh was salesman for Peerless Beauty and Barber Supply (Tr. 97); Plaintiffs had been doing business with Peerless Beauty and Barber Supply from the beginning in May, 1959 (Tr. 22, 25, 26).

Plaintiffs brought suit against the defendant for injunctive relief to enjoin the defendant from further use of the trade or service mark MADEMOISELLE and for damages (R. 1, 2). The matter of damages was reserved by the court until the determination of the ownership of the name MADEMOISELLE. The court found that the plaintiffs' and defendant's trade names MADEMOISELLE are similar, and would be confusing, except that the two companies are operating in different trade areas. The court further found that the plaintiffs' registration of their name with the Secretary of State would have given the plaintiffs a right to use their trade name on a statewide basis had it been timely registered; however, the lower court held that, at the time of registration on June 2, 1961, the defendant had previously adopted such name and had not abandoned it and that the adoption was without knowledge of plaintiffs' trade name. The court further found that plaintiffs' registration of their trade-

name on June 2, 1961, after the defendant had also adopted such name, was invalid.

It is from this decision that plaintiffs prosecute this appeal.

ARGUMENT

I

BY REASON OF PRIORITY OF ADOPTION AND USE, PLAINTIFFS ARE THE COMMON LAW OWNERS IN UTAH OF THE TRADEMARK AND TRADENAME "MADEMOISELLE" AS APPLIED TO HAIR STYLING SPRAY AND COSMETICS AND TO BEAUTY SALONS.

a. Acquisition of Basic Rights

In the absence of prior conflicting right, the adoption and use of the trademark MADEMOISELLE by plaintiffs as early as the year 1959 through their sale of hair styling spray in containers bearing labels imprinted with the mark (Tr. 13, Exhibit "C") established a common law right to the mark in plaintiffs.

"Undoubtedly, the general rule is that, as between conflicting claimants to the right to use the same mark, priority of appropriation determines the question."

United Drug Co. v. Rectanus Co.
248 U.S. 90, 100 (1918)

b. Territorial Considerations

It is well recognized that such a right has territorial

limits. Thus, it was held in a somewhat earlier U. S. Supreme Court case, cited with approval in the United Drug case:

“ where two parties independently are employing the same mark upon goods of the same class, but in separate markets wholly remote the one from the other, the question of prior appropriation is legally insignificant, unless at least it appear that the second adopter has selected the mark with some design inimical to the interests of the first user, such as to take the benefit of the reputation of his goods, to forestall the extension of his trade, or the like.”

Hanover Star Milling Co. v. Metcalf
240 U. S. 403, 415 (1916)

However, with respect to what constitutes “separate markets wholly remote the one from the other,” the court said:

“Into whatever markets the use of a trade-mark has extended, or its meaning has become known, there will the manufacturer or trader whose trade is pirated by an infringing use be entitled to protection and redress.” (pp. 415, 416).

The extent of use in an area to create the right and warrant the protection need not be large in the instance of a technical trademark.

“In case of a technical trade-mark as here dealt with (Sweet Sixteen for dresses), while there must, of course, be some user in trade in the disputed field of trade, the quantum thereof need not be large.”

Sweet Sixteen Co. v. Sweet “16” Shop
15 F. 2d 920, 925 (CCA8, 1926)

In the cited case, wherein the defendants in Salt Lake City were enjoined from continuing use of the name

“Sweet ‘16’ Shop” for a dress shop, even though the original California appropriators of the trademark “Sweet Sixteens” and the tradename “Sweet Sixteen Company” had no store in Utah and had made only a total of eight mail order sales over a period of about two years during the circulation in Utah of out-of-state newspapers containing its advertisements and the distribution by it of a quantity of mail order catalogues, the court referred to the Hanover Star Milling and United Drug cases (*supra*) as follows:

“Obviously, the trade-marks under discussion in the Hanover and Rectanus Cases were likewise technical trade-marks, but in neither of the latter cases had there been any sales, advertisements of goods, or user whatever by complainants therein in the territory there in controversy.” (p. 925)

c. Nature and Use of Plaintiffs’ Mark

In the present case, it is obvious that the mark **MADEMOISELLE** is a technical trademark on the same basis that the court in the Sweet Sixteen Case (*supra*) regarded **SWEET SIXTEEN** as such. In fact, the lower court expressly found this so by its holding that plaintiffs’ Utah State Registration would have been valid if made prior to defendant’s adoption of a similar mark. Moreover, even though the lower court gave as one of the reasons for its decision adverse to plaintiffs that “the two companies are operating in different trade areas and are not in competition with each other,” this is apparently based on consideration of the service aspect of the case without due regard for the trademark or tradename aspect, as in the Sweet Sixteen case.

It cannot be denied that the evidence clearly shows penetration and use of plaintiffs' trademarks in Salt Lake and Davis Counties (Tr. 34) and at least extension of the reputation of both trademark and tradename into those and other neighboring counties (Tr. 13-19, 26, 76-80, 83-87, 91-93, 128-131, 134-136, 146, 149-156, 174, and 175. Exhibits "B", "C", and "G") prior to defendant's adoption of the mark, thereby establishing extended rights as contemplated by both the Hanover Star Milling and the Sweet Sixteen cases.

d. Knowledge of Plaintiffs' Name by Defendant

Though the Sweet Sixteen case is much cited as precedent for an exception to what has been termed the general rule of the Hanover Star Milling case, because the court found the defendants to have known of the plaintiff's use of its name before actual use by such defendants of their infringing name, and, therefore, to have selected the name "with some design inimical to the interests of the first user," careful analysis of the facts shows that the differences there and here are very small even though the lower court apparently found against plaintiffs on this issue.

Thus, the defendants, there, received telegraphic notification from the plaintiff only four days before issuance of a certificate of registration to them by the State of Utah, and, though they had not actually commenced business, it is apparent that they had filed for registration at least ten days previously under the then existing Utah law requiring publication once a week for two successive weeks. There was no other evidence of knowledge by the

defendants of the plaintiff's activities, although the circuit court apparently drew several inferences (Sweet Sixteen Co. v. Sweet 16 Shop, *supra*, p 924) which might reasonably be drawn in the present case on the basis of reluctant admissions by the defendant here (Tr. 41, 42, and 184-186) and the circumstances (Tr. 22, 25, 26, 97).

In the present case, defendant positively knew of plaintiffs' prior use of the name "sometime about the time that we opened up" (Tr. 186).

e. No Question of Estoppel Here

It is significant to note that both the Hanover Star Milling (*supra*, p. 419) and the United Drug (*supra*, p. 103) decisions stress the factor of estoppel as a reason for denying protection to a trademark owner who confines his use of the mark to a limited geographical area over a period of many years (Hanover 40 years; United Drug 35 years).

In the Hanover case, the court said:

" they must be held to have taken the risk that some innocent party might, during their forty years of inactivity (in the contested area), hit upon the same mark and expend money and effort in building up a trade in flour under it . . . And when it appears, as it does, that the Hanover Company in good faith and without notice of the Allen & Wheeler mark has expended much money and effort in building up its trade in the south-eastern market, so that 'Tea Rose' there means Hanover Company's flour and nothing else, the Allen & Wheeler Company is estopped to assert trade-mark infringement as to that

territory.” (p. 419).

In the present case, the defendant knew of plaintiffs’ use of the name “sometime about the time we opened up” (Tr. 186); he had direct notice in writing from plaintiffs within two and a half months (Tr. 47, Defendant’s Exhibit 6); and this suit was commenced within three months (R. 1).

It should be particularly noted that, in the Sweet Sixteen case, the defendants acted on the advice of legal counsel (Sweet Sixteen Co. v. Sweet “16” Shop, *supra*, p. 921).

f. On the Evidence, There Should be no Question as to Plaintiffs’ Rights Throughout the State of Utah

It is submitted that the present case is not one like the Hanover Star Milling, the United Drug, and the Sweet Sixteen cases, where the adverse use could reasonably be said to be “in separate markets wholly remote the one from the other” (Hanover Star Milling Co. v. Metcalf, *supra*, p. 415). Rather, it is one such as Justice Holmes had in mind when he said, in his concurring opinion in the Hanover Star Milling case:

“I think state lines, speaking always of matters outside the authority of Congress, are important in another way. I do not believe that a trade-mark established in Chicago could be used by a competitor in some other part of Illinois on the ground that it was not known there. I think that if it is good in one part of the State it is good in all. But when it seeks to pass state lines it may find itself limited by what has been done under the sanction of a power coordi-

nate with that of Illinois and paramount over the territory concerned.” (p. 426)

Although the above view was directly criticized in the majority opinion (p. 416) and has not been generally regarded with favor by scholars in the field of trademark law, it received tacit support by the majority in the *United Drug* case (only two and a half years later) sufficient to satisfy Justice Holmes when the *entire* court said:

“It would be a perversion of the rule of priority to give it such an application in our broadly extended country that an innocent party who had in good faith employed a trade-mark in one State . . . might afterwards be prevented from using it . . . at the instance of one who therefore had employed the same mark but only in other and remote jurisdictions. . . ”

United Drug Co. v. Rectanus Co. (supra, p. 100)

Without urging the proposition that State lines should be absolute criteria, as might be implied from Justice Holmes’ concurring opinion in the *Hanover Star Milling case* (supra), it is submitted that they do have a place in the consideration of trademark rights under the common law and properly define the territory within which plaintiffs’ trademark and tradename rights should be given protection by this Court under the facts of this case.

See:

Callmann “Unfair Competition and Trade-Marks”

2nd Ed. Vol. 3 p. 1202

Socony-Vacuum Oil Company, Inc. v. Oil City Refineries, Inc.

136 F. 2d 470 (CCA6, 1943)

g. Holdings by Other Courts

The foregoing decisions are basic in the law of trademarks as respects the acquisition and enforcement of territorial rights. The legal principles involved have been followed or discussed time and time again, but with discretion based on the facts of each case and with a tendency toward upholding the first appropriator's rights to an ever increasing extent.

Terminal Barber Shops, Inc. v. Zoberg et al
28 F. 2d 807 (CCA2, 1928)

Stork Restaurant, Inc. v. Sahati
166 F. 2d 348 (CCA9, 1948)

Food Fair Stores, Inc. v. Lakeland Grocery Corp.
301 F. 2d 156 (4CA, 1962)

Western Auto Supply Co. v. Western Auto Supply Co.
13 F. Supp. 525 (Dist. Ct. N.H., 1936)

Stork Restaurant, Inc. v. Marcus
36 F. Supp. 90 (Dist. Ct. E.D. Pa., 1941)

Adam Hat Stores, Inc. v. Scherper
45 Supp. 804 (Dist. Ct. E.D. Wisc., 1942)

Quality Courts United, Inc. v. Quality Courts, Inc.
140 F. Supp. 341 (Dist. Ct. M. Pa., 1956)

It is interesting to note that, in the Terminal Barber Shop case, a chain of barber shops and beauty parlors in New York doing no business in New Jersey but having customers there was granted relief from use of the name in New Jersey by a later user.

II

COMPETITION IS NOT AN ESSENTIAL ELEMENT OF TRADEMARK OR TRADENAME INFRINGEMENT AT COMMON LAW.

“Lack of competition between the parties no longer is a defense to an action for unfair competition. Defendants have raised this issue in cases where there is no direct competition . . . because they do business in different territories. Formerly the emphasis was on competition, and lack of it was considered a sufficient defense . . . In recent years this case (Borden Ice Cream Co. v. Borden’s Condensed Milk Co. 201 F. 510, 514 CCA7, 1912) has been distinguished and its doctrine rejected (citing a long line of cases).”

Nims, Unfair Competition and Trade-Marks,”
4th Ed. pp. 1194, 1195

See also:

3 Restatement, Torts, par. 730, comment (a)

White Tower System, Inc. v. White Castle
System of Eating Houses Corp.
90 F. 2d 67 (CCA6, 1937)

Adolph Kastor & Bros., Inc. v. Federal Trade
Commission
138 F. 2d 824, 826 (CCA2, 1943)

Stork Restaurant, Inc. v. Sahati (supra)

The Brass Rail, Inc. v. Ye Brass Rail of Mass-
achusetts, Inc.
43 F. Supp. 671 (Dist. Ct. D. Mass., 1938)

III

PLAINTIFFS' UTAH STATE REGISTRATION CONSTITUTES PRIMA FACIE EVIDENCE OF THEIR EXCLUSIVE OWNERSHIP OF THE TRADEMARK "MADEMOISELLE" FOR BEAUTY SALON SUPPLIES THROUGHOUT THE STATE OF UTAH AND IS VALID.

The Utah State Trade-Mark Act (Title 70, Utah Code Annotated) provides:

"Any certificate of registration issued by the secretary of state under the provisions hereof or a copy thereof duly certified by the secretary of state . . . shall be prima facie evidence of exclusive ownership of the trade-mark or service mark by the registrant." (70-3-5)

State registration statutes are in affirmance of the common law (Callmann "Unfair Competition and Trade-Marks," 2d Ed., Vol. 4, p. 2088), and, as such, base the right to register on priority of use. The doctrines of *Hanover Star Milling Co. v. Metcalf* (supra) and *United Drug Co. v. Rectanus* (supra) with respect to territorial rights are actually exceptions to the general rule that the first user of a trademark is its owner, see Point I (a) herein and *White Tower System, Inc. v. White Castle System* (supra).

Thus, the plaintiffs were completely justified in making oath at the time of filing their application for registration, on June 2, 1961, that "no other person has the right to use such trade-mark or service mark . . . in the State of Utah."

It is submitted that defendant has failed to uphold his burden of proof that there is, in fact, some other person who has the right to use plaintiffs' trademark — in the State of Utah adversely to plaintiffs.

Respectfully submitted,

LIONEL M. FARR
574 East 2nd South
Salt Lake City, Utah

PHILLIP V. CHRISTENSON, for
CHRISTENSON, NOVAK, PAUL-
SON & TAYLOR
55 East Center Street
Provo, Utah

PHILIP A. MALLINCKRODT
10 Exchange Place
Salt Lake City, Utah
Attorneys for Plaintiffs-Appellants