1963

William Garth Seegmiller and Marjorie Seegmiller  
dba Mademoiselle Beauty Salon v. Al Hunt dba  
Mademoiselle Coiffures : Defendant-Brief of  
Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

“Confessedly the general rule is that, while the first appropriator and user of a trademark owns such mark . . . such protection will not be afforded as against a subsequent user and appropriator, who in good faith adopts and uses the mark in a territory into which the goods of the first appropriator have not penetrated.”

*Sweet Sixteen Co. v. Sweet “16” Shop*,  
15 F 2d 920, P. 923, (CCA 8, 1926)

### 2. Exceptions

The court in that case went on (p. 924) to cite the two exceptions to the above rule, namely:

“(a) But where two parties independently are employing the same mark upon goods of the same class, but in separate markets wholly remote the one from the other, the question of prior appropriation is legally insignificant, unless at least it appear that the second adopter has selected the mark with some design inimical to the interests of the first user, such as to take the benefit of the reputation of his goods, to forestall the extension of his trade, or the like.” *United Drug v. Rectanus*, 248 U S 90, 101.

“(b) We are not dealing with a case where the junior appropriator of a trademark is occupying



territory that would probably be reached by the prior user in the natural expansion of his trade, and need pass no judgment upon such a case.” Hanover Star Milling Co. v. Metcalf, 240 U S 403, 420.

Certainly the case at bar does not fall within “exception (a),” because the trier of fact has determined from the evidence that Defendant had no knowledge of Plaintiffs’ use (R. 12, 14), so couldn’t have had a “free ride” or use in mind inimical to best interests of Plaintiffs.

What constitutes “separate markets” is a prime factor in determining these cases. Thus, 3 Restatement of Torts defined market in comments under Para. 717 as follows:

“d. Limitation as to goods and market:

One who has a trade mark or trade name does not have the exclusive right to use the designation even as a trade mark or trade name. He has the exclusive right only within more or less restricted markets. . . .” (p. 567)

“e. Market.

The noun “market” means, initially, the territorial area in which goods are bought and sold, or the gathering of persons in such an area for the purpose of buying or selling goods. . . .” (p. 567)

Subsequently in Para. 732 the Restatement says:

“732 Extent of protection with reference to territorial markets.



The interest in a trade mark or trade name is protected, under the rule stated in 717, with reference only to Territory from which he received or, with the probable expansion of his business, may reasonably expect to receive custom in the business in which he uses his trade mark or trade name, and in territory in which a similar designation is used for the purpose of forestalling the expansion of his business. (p. 604)

“Comment a.

The territorial limits within which the right to exclusive use of a trade mark or trade name exists may be narrower than the territorial limits of the law that creates the right. Since the right is created in order to avoid, or compensate for, harm caused by the marketing of one's goods or services as those of another, the right is limited to the territory in which such harm is likely. . . . In each case the issue is whether, in the territory in which the similar designation is used, there are or are likely to be a considerable number of prospective purchasers of the goods or services in connection with which the trade mark or trade name is used, who are likely to be misled by the similarity. On this issue the good or bad faith of the alleged infringer is an important factor . . .” (p. 604)

These sections emphasize the importance of the *number* of potentially *misled* customers, and the *bad faith* of alleged infringer.

The National Grocery Co. case is a leading case defining “geographic market,” and market of “future probable expansion” mentioned as exception (b) in the Sweet Sixteen case. In that case, two supermarket retail-

ers emphasized "National" in their respective names, their nearest stores being 25 miles apart in New Jersey. The State Court in 1924 refused to enjoin the latecomer saying:

" . . . The grievance is the single one already mentioned, namely, the use of the word which the complainant says it has pre-empted in the chain store business in the state of New Jersey as against the entire world. . . . Obviously, by force of the definition of the kind of business in which the parties are engaged, each store must draw its trade from a small surrounding territory. . . ."

National Grocery Co. v. National Stores Corporation, 123 A. 740, 740 (New Jersey).

The Court continued:

" . . . Surely in the great majority of business enterprises, . . . there is implied the hope, intention and design of constantly invading new territory. . . . It would be absurd to say that any such intention should permit the pre-empting of the use of the name at a place and time where such a supposed business enterprise had no customers or business, and therefore nothing to lose. It is entirely too remote and fanciful for the complainant to object to another using a name in a certain locality, not because he has already established his trade there, but because he may do so in the future. . . ." (p. 743)

The Court then distinguished cases reaching contrary result:

" . . . In all of the cases which the Vice Chancellor used as precedents (Hilton Case) the out-

standing fact, . . . was the stealing by Defendant of complainants customers.” (p. 743)

The dictum of the Utah Supreme Court in the Blue Bell case cites *United Drug Co. v. Rectanus*, and then sets forth a similar doctrine as Utah Law in refusing to recognize market of future expansion:

“The adoption of a trade mark does not project a right of protection in advance of the extension of, or operate as a claim of territorial rights over areas into which it thereafter may be deemed desirable to extend the trade.”

*The Blue Bell Co. v. Frontier Refining Co.*  
213 F 2d 355, 361 (1954) (Utah)

Plaintiff urges that the Sweet Sixteen Co. decision reaches a contrary conclusion. However, the court here merely found that the Plaintiff was already in the market because of daily advertisements for some two years in 75 different newspapers circulated daily in Salt Lake City, prior distribution of 1500 printed catalogs in Utah, 6-8 mail order sales, distribution of supplemental pictures and drawings, negotiations for store lease, many actual cases of confusion, and telegraphic notification of the conflict four days prior to the registration:

“. . . defendants assumed this name with full knowledge of its use by plaintiff . . .” (p. 921)

Results similar to those in the National Grocery case, were reached by the Washington Court in the Eastern Outfitting case where Seattle and Spokane were held to constitute different markets:

“ . . . his protection is co-extensive with his market. The doctrine of unfair competition is based upon the principle of common business integrity, and equity only affords relief when this principle has been violated. . . . The mischief which a court of equity will guard against is a confusion in names or in the identity of the parties or in the goods sold so as to deceive the public and work a fraud upon the party having a right to the trade name. There cannot be unfair trade competition unless there is competition.”

Eastern Outfitting Co. v. Manheim, et. al.  
110 p. 23, 24 (Washington)

The Massachusetts Court found that various stores as close as sixteen miles apart were in different trade areas:

“The trade name and symbols of the plaintiff cannot extend into regions where his goods are not sold, where he has no customers, and where he has no trade. There can be no recovery unless it appears that there has been a wrongful appropriation by defendant. . . . Actual or probable deception of the public . . . is the basis of the action. There can be no unfair competition unless plaintiff is in fact a rival for the trade which defendant secures.”

Kaufman v. Kaufman  
111 NE 691, 692, (1916) (Massachusetts)

See also Good Housekeeping Shop v. Smit-  
ten, et. al.  
236 NW 872 (Michigan)

Nims points out that the determination of geographic boundaries of protection is a question of fact rather than law.

“While the concept of good-will has become less closely confined territorially, it still has boundaries, and even under modern doctrine it is necessary that there be evidence of its existence to warrant its protection. Its extent is a question of fact rather than of law.”

Nims, *Unfair Competition and Trade Marks*, 4th Ed., Sec. 35 (a), p. 150

In the Kaufman case the court said:

“It does not seem easy to infer that men would travel sixteen to seventy-three miles . . . for a hat.” (p. 692)

Similarly in the case at bar, not only is evidence of existing confusion or competition lacking but it is difficult to infer that women in the future would travel 164 miles round trip from Ogden to Provo for a hairdo.

### C. Nature and Use of Mark

Plaintiff attempts to draw distinction on basis of “Technical trade mark” as opposed to common-law mark. However, the court in the Sweet Sixteen case stated the accepted rule:

“It is well settled that, both in cases of unfair competition unaccompanied with trade mark infringement, and in cases of infringement of technical or common-law trade marks, the essence of the wrong consists in the sale or mistaking of goods of one dealer or manufacturer for those of another.” (P. 925).

Defendant denies any penetration by Plaintiff into Davis or Weber Counties prior to critical date of June 2, 1961 (Tr. 89, 134, 160-170). There was no confusion

or competition in fact (Tr. 80, 81, 93, 135). Neither was there any evidence of “free ride” or “palming off.”

#### D. Knowledge of Plaintiffs’ Name by Defendant

In the present case Defendant did not know of Plaintiffs’ existence at time of adoption of Defendant’s name (Tr. 41, 42, 51, 97, 184, 185, 186) or subsequently until after good will and “Secondary Meaning” were established. The Court, as trier of fact, so determined. (R. 12, 14)

The court in the Sweet Sixteen case clearly found that defendant had actual notice of plaintiff four days before registration issued. (p. 921) It should also be noted that Defendant in the Sweet Sixteen case had not established any good will or secondary meaning in the name prior to Plaintiffs’ entering the “market.”

#### E. Estoppel

Although the doctrine of estoppel might properly be urged, it is not essential to Defendant’s case.

Although Plaintiffs might have registered their name as early as 1959, and pre-empted the entire state, they failed to do so. They should be estopped on theory of Hanover Star Milling case from asserting their unprotected claim after defendant has developed “Secondary Meaning” and “good will” at substantial expense:

“. . . they must be held to have taken the risk that some innocent party might . . . hit upon the same mark and expend money and effort in building up a trade. . . . And when it appears, as it

does, that Hanover Company in good faith, and without notice . . . has expended much money and effort in building up its trade . . . Allen & Wheeler Company is estopped to assert trade mark infringement as to that territory.” (p. 419)

#### F. Extension of Plaintiffs’ Rights “Throughout Utah”

Plaintiffs admit that the rule that common-law rights are co-extensive with state boundaries was criticized by the majority opinion (p. 416) in the Hanover case, “and has not been generally regarded with favor by scholars in the field of trademark law.” ( Pl. Br. 12)

See also:

3 Restatement of Tor, Sec. 732, Comment a., *supra*.

National Grocery Co. v. National Stores Corp., *supra*.

Eastern Outfitting Co. v. Manheim, et. al., *supra*.

Kaufman v. Kaufman, *supra*.

Good Housekeeping Shop v. Smitten, et. al., *supra*.

The facts of the case at bar show no competition or confusion between Plaintiffs and Defendant north of Salt Lake County on June 2, 1961, and substantially no penetration of any kind by Plaintiffs into northern Utah.



## G. Holdings of Other Courts

Cases cited by Plaintiffs as broadening territorial rights are distinguishable either on basis of intentional appropriation for free ride, bad faith of the latecomer, or deception of public due to actual confusion of source.

## II

### COMPETITION REMAINS THE ESSENCE OF A TRADEMARK, TRADENAME OR UNFAIR COMPETITION SUIT AT COMMON LAW.

Although some courts have used language suggesting competition is no longer necessary, such is not the law of the land.

Laws of “Unfair Competition,” common law and statutory, were designed to free competition from abuses, still recognizing that: “Liberty to compete should  
✓ guarantee the rewards to those who could survive by reason of economic fitness and superior merit in productive and selling efficiency.”

Oppenheim, Cases on Unfair Competition-Trade Regulation (1948 Ed.), p. 10

See Defendants Trial Court Brief, p. 8-9, for historical summary.

In the Eastern Wine Corp. case, Judge Frank succinctly states the law:



“The failure to keep constantly in mind the divers policy considerations . . . and the consequent occasional over-emphasis on but one of them — the protection of the interest of the businessman who has built a business around a name — has sometimes led to decisions unduly extending the confines of name-monopolies. For a time the courts were remarkably generous in fixing the boundaries of such monopolies. *Today the tendency is to be somewhat less generous. . . . We approach the case at bar, then, having in mind the basic common-law policy of encouraging competition and the fact the protection of monopolies in names is but a secondary and limiting factor.*”

Eastern Wine Corp. v. Winslow-Warren,  
Ltd.

137 F 2d 955, 959 (CCA 2d, 1953)

Cert. Denied; 320 US 758

For critical analysis of opinions see Zlinkoff: Monopoly v. Competition: 53 Yale Law Journal 514, 528-552 (1944). Zlinkoff says in 53 Yale Law Journal:

“The trend of decisions within this field . . . in contrast to that prevailing in a previous period — has unmistakable been moving toward restricting the scope of exclusive rights awarded plaintiffs and corresponding broadening the privileges of their competitors.” (p. 531).

Zlinkoff also attacks the more liberal expressions of Callman, as not reflecting the law:

“. . . decisional trends have not been influenced by writers like Callman because, in their advocacy of greater recognition of exclusive rights in marks . . . they have overlooked the interests of

the public, and the view that free competition best advances those interests.” (p. 529)

Similarly, in the National Grocery Co. case the court said:

“Of course, their must be actual competition before there can be any unfair competition.” (p. 74)

Similar law is pronounced in Eastern Outfitting Co. case (p. 24), and Kaufman case (p. 692) quoted previously.

Although Judge Learned Hand has been often quoted as authority for decisions not relying on “competition,” he has on several occasions noted that irrespective of the language used, the essential element remains competition:

“The law of unfair trade comes down very nearly to this — as judges have repeated again and again — that one merchant shall not divert customers from another by representing what he sells as emanating from the second. This has been, and perhaps even more now is, the whole Law and the Prophets on the subject, though it assumes many guises.”

Yale Electric Corp. v. Robertson  
26 F 2d 972, 973 (CCA 2, 1928)

See also:

Borden Ice Cream Co. v. Borden Condensed Milk Co.  
201 F 2d 510, 514 (CCA 7, 1912)

There can be no “passing off,” “free-ride,” or confusion of source except in the area of “competitive business.”

Certainly the Utah Supreme Court recognized this in its decision in the Blue Bell cases in refusing to recognize “market of future expansion.” (p. 361)

### III

#### PLAINTIFFS’ PURPORTED UTAH STATE REGISTRATION OF THE TRADE-MARK OR TRADENAME “MADEMOISELLE” FOR BEAUTY SALON BUSINESS THROUGHOUT THE STATE OF UTAH IS INVALID.

Admittedly, the Utah act provides that Registration . . . shall constitute prima-facie evidence of exclusive ownership (Utah Code Annotated, 70-3-5).

Defendant clearly overcame Plaintiffs’ “prima facie” case for exclusive ownership. (R. 8, 12, 14, Tr. 41-46)

Utah Code Annotated, Section 70-3-2 forbids registration of a mark “used in this state by another and not abandoned”:

*“70-3-2: Trade Marks and Service Marks not to be Registered When: A trade mark or service mark shall not be registered if it . . .*

6. Consists of or comprises a trade mark or service mark registered in this state or a trade mark, trade name or service mark previously *used in this state by another and not abandoned* as to be likely when applied to the goods and services of the applicant to cause confusion or mistake and to deceive. . . . ”

The evidence clearly shows that Defendant’s use was previous to this purported registration and had not been abandoned.

Utah Code Annotated, Section 70-3-10 provides for cancellation if found:

“2.b. That the registrant is not the owner of the trade mark or service mark.

c. That the registration was granted improperly.

3. When a court of competent jurisdiction shall order cancellation of a registration on any ground.”

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